
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS:

DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

PURPOSE:

Call to order: Council Chamber

Wednesday, September 17,2014

4:00 p.m.

Rosenberg City Hall
City Hall Council Chamber
2110 4th Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471

Rosenberg Planning Commission Meeting

AGENDA

1. Consideration of and action on Regular Planning Commission Meeting minutes for August 20, 2014. (LeLaurin)

2. Consideration of and action on Amendment NO.4 to the Town Center, Rosenberg, Texas Development Agreement,
including Developer's Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit "B," Brazos Town Center, being 393.8 acres of land out of the
Simon Jones Survey, A-187, Robert E. Handy Survey, A-271 , and Jane Long League, A-55, City of Rosenberg, Fort
Bend County, Texas. (Tanner)

3. Consideration of and action on Amendment NO.5 to the Town Center, Rosenberg, Texas Development Agreement,
including Developer's Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit "B," Brazos Town Center, being 393.8 acres of land out of the
Simon Jones Survey, A-187, Robert E. Handy Survey, A-271, and Jane Long League, A-55, City of Rosenberg, Fort
Bend County, Texas. (Tanner)

4. Consideration of and action on a Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One, being 70.8 acres of land
containing 184 lots (60' x 120') (65' x 125') (75' x 130' typ.) and seven reserves in nine blocks out of the Wiley Martin
League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas. (Tanner)

5. Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 days for the
Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. Two, a subdivision of 3.451 acres containing 1,930 L.F.
of RO.W. out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, and the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas.
(Tanner)

6. Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 days for the
Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven, a subdivision of 9.621 acres containing 3 blocks, 31 lots, and 1
restricted reserve out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, Texas. (Tanner)

7. Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 days for the
Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven, a subdivision of 8.764 acres containing 27 lots, 2 blocks and 1
restricted reserve out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, and the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County;
Texas. (Tanner)

8. Hold public hearing for a Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A-2" , a
subdivision of 4.3943 acres or 191,416 square feet of land being a replat of Commercial Reserve "A-2" of Goldshire
Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A", recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 20130048, in the James
Lowery Survey, Abstract No. 275, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 1 block, 2 reserves. (Tanner)

9. Consideration of and action on a Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A-2", a
subdivision of 4.3943 acres or 191,416 square feet of land being a replat of Commercial Reserve "A-2" of Goldshire
Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A", recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 20130048, in the James
Lowery Survey, Abstract No. 275, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 1 block, 2 reserves. (Tanner)

10. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight, being a subdivision of 8.574 acres out of
the W.M. Lusk Survey, A-276 and the Jane Long League, A-55, in the City of Rosenberg, in Fort Bend County, Texas
(Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144); 36 lots, 2 blocks, 1 reserve (0.5214 acre). (Tanner)

Page 1 of 3



11. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two, being a subdivision of 16.498 acres
out of the Robert E. Handy Survey, A-187, in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend
County Municipal Utility District No. 144): 64 lots, 3 blocks, 3 reserves (0.6726 acre). (Tanner)

12. Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items. (Tanner)

13. Announcements.

14. Adjournment.

The Planning Commission reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section
551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]

Page 2 of 3





ITEM 1 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for August 20, 2014. 



 
PAGE 1 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
***DRAFT*** 

 
On this the 20th day of August 2014, the Planning Commission of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met in 
regular meeting at the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
  Pete Pavlovsky    Planning Commission Chairperson 

             Lester Phipps, Jr.   Planning Commission Vice Chairperson 
                          Wayne Poldrack   Planning Commission Secretary 
  Alicia Casias    Planning Commissioner 
  Mike Parsons    Planning Commissioner 
                          James Urbish    Planning Commissioner 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
  Cynthia McConathy   Councilor, At Large Position Two 
  Travis Tanner    Executive Director of Community Development 
  Scott Tschirhart    City Attorney 
  Renée LeLaurin    Secretary II 
 
GUESTS PRESENT 
  Vahid Tabrizi    ERSA Grae Corporation – Stonecreek Estates 
  Kerry Gilbert    Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates – Stonecreek Estates 
  Geoff Freeman    Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates – Stonecreek Estates 
  Tom Sabin    GSSW Real Estate Investments – The Fountains II 
  Tony Topping    Texas Masonry Council 
  Carol Redd    EHRA – Park Place Boulevard/Rivers Mist 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
Chairperson Pavlovsky called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE JUNE 18, 2014 AND JULY 16, 2014 REGULAR 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING. 
 
Action Taken:  Vice Chairperson Phipps moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve the minutes of the 
June 18, 2014 Regular Planning Commission Meeting as written. The motion carried by a vote of four “ayes” and 
two abstentions.  Ayes: Chairperson Pavlovsky, Vice Chairperson Phipps, Commissioner Poldrack and 
Urbish.  Abstentions:  Commissioners Casias and Parsons. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Casias, to approve the minutes of the 
July 16, 2014 Regular Planning Commission Meeting as written. The motion carried by a vote of four “ayes” and 
two abstentions.  Ayes: Chairperson Pavlovsky, Commissioner Casias, Poldrack and Urbish.  Abstentions:  
Vice Chairperson Phipps and Commissioner Parsons. 
 

2. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF PARK PLACE BOULEVARD STREET 
DEDICATION, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF 2.3580 ACRES OUT OF THE ROBERT E. HANDY SURVEY, A-187, 
IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 144); 0 LOTS, 0 BLOCKS, 0 RESERVES. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Park Place Boulevard Street Dedication consists of 2.358 acres of 
proposed public right-of-way.  The Plat is located off of Reading Road and August Green Drive, in the City Limits and in 
Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  It extends from the existing portion of Park Place Boulevard abutting the Waterford Park 
Apartments to the roundabout where August Green Drive currently terminates.  It is a proposed eighty-foot (80’) collector 
street right-of-way that will provide a needed secondary access to and from the subdivision.  The Plat is in accordance with 
the Revised Land Use and Parcel Plan for MUD No. 144 and is not in conflict with any applicable regulations.  Staff 



 
PAGE 2 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Park Place Boulevard Street Dedication. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the Preliminary Plat 
of Park Place Boulevard Street Dedication, being a subdivision of 2.3580 acres out of the Robert E. Handy Survey, 
A-187, in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144); 0 
lots, 0 blocks, 0 reserves. 
 
Additional Discussion:  

• Commissioner Parsons inquired if the streets are marked on the drawing. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it is marked but not named as such.  
• Commissioner Parsons would like to see where streets are on the drawing. 

 
Action Taken:  Upon voting, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF RIVERS MIST SECTION TWO, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF 15.59 ACRES OUT OF THE W.M. LUSK SURVEY, A-276, IN FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS 
(FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 158); 46 LOTS, 2 BLOCKS, 4 RESERVES (4.2975 
ACRES). 
 
Executive Summary: The Preliminary Plat of Rivers Mist Section Two is located off of Furleson Drive, southwest of the 
intersection of Reading Road and Sorens Mist Boulevard.  The proposed Plat is in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 158. 
 
The Plat consists of 46 lots, two (2) blocks, and three (3) reserves totaling 4.2658 acres.  All proposed lots are a minimum 
of sixty feet (60’) in width.  This is in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Rivers Mist dated May 2006. 
 
The proposed Plat meets all applicable regulations of the City of Rosenberg and is not in conflict with the Land Plan 
for Rivers Mist.  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Rivers Mist Section Two. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired what the square footage of the lots is. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that that information is in the plat. They are fairly large starting at a minimum of 7,200 

square feet. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish to approve the Preliminary Plat 
of Rivers Mist Section Two, being a subdivision of 15.59 acres out of the W.M. Lusk survey, A-276, in Fort Bend 
County, Texas (Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 158); 46 lots, 2 blocks, 4 reserves (4.2975 acres). 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF COTTONWOOD SECTION THREE-B, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 8.333 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE S.A. STONE SURVEY NO. 10, A-392, CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; LOTS:  44; RESERVES:  1; BLOCKS:  4. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Cottonwood Section Three-B consists of 8.33 acres and 44 residential lots.  
It is located off of Barton Creek and Pease River Lanes, immediately southwest of Cottonwood Section Three-A.  The Plat 
is within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 148. 
  
All proposed lots are fifty feet (50’) in width and a minimum of 6,000 square feet in size.  The Land Plan was approved 
before the current standards relating to lot size.  The Plat conforms to the approved Land Plan dated April 2003. 
 
There being no conflicts with applicable regulations, staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Cottonwood 
Section Three-B. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many 50-foot, 6,000 square foot lots are left that have already been 

pre-approved. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that Mr. Kalkomey is out of town and with the size of this Agenda, there was no way that 



 
PAGE 3 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

staff was able to figure that out in preparation for this meeting. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of Cottonwood Section Three-B, a subdivision of 8.333 acres of land located in the S.A. Stone Survey No. 10, 
A-392, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; Lots:  44; Reserves:  1; Blocks:  4.  
 
Additional Discussion:  

• Commissioner Casias inquired in regard to the approval of the Land Plan in 2003; is that an open date after 
it is approved? 

• Mr. Tanner replied that some of the development agreements have a ten year designation whereafter ten 
years, all of the lots not yet platted would have to comply with City design standards. Those are the more 
recent development agreements, and because this one dates back so far, it does not have a provision like 
that. Basically, they are vested in their Land Plan back to 2003. 

• Commissioner Casias stated that unless it is approved by Council, they do not have to comply going 
forward with any standards. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that there is a development agreement, and the Land Plan is an exhibit to that 
agreement. 

• Commissioner Parsons inquired if any of these have been preapproved in the ten year limit. Cottonwood 
does not have to adhere to the ten year limit. Are there any others that the City has approved? 

• Mr. Tanner replied that there might be one or two others, but many of the more recent ones that came in 
around 2004 and 2005 have that condition in them.   

• Commission Parsons stated that it would be nice to understand those to have knowledge with what we are 
facing. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if this was the last area out there. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that there is one section south of this plat for future development and there are a few 

areas on the other side for development.   
• Commissioner Parsons inquired when Cottonwood was approved. 
• Mr. Tanner replied 2003. 

 
Action Taken:  Upon voting, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF COTTONWOOD SECTION THREE-B, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 8.333 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE S.A. STONE SURVEY NO. 10, A-392, CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; LOTS:  44; RESERVES:  1; BLOCKS:  4. 
 
Executive Summary:  Per the previous Agenda item, the Final Plat of Cottonwood Section Three-B consists of 8.33 
acres and 44 residential lots.  It is located off of Barton Creek and Pease River Lanes, immediately southwest of 
Cottonwood Section Three-A.  The Plat is within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 148. 
 
All proposed lots are fifty feet (50’) in width and a minimum of 6,000 square feet in size.  The Land Plan was approved 
before the current standards relating to lot size.  The Plat conforms to the approved Land Plan dated April 2003. 
 
In this case, the applicant submitted the Final Plat at the same time as the Preliminary Plat.  City staff did not see 
an issue with the Preliminary and Final Plats being on the same Agenda because plans for the public infrastructure 
in the subdivision had already been submitted and approved.  There being no conflicts with applicable regulations, 
staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Cottonwood Section Three-B.  
 
Key Discussion:   

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken: Vice Chairperson Phipps moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the Final Plat of 
Cottonwood Section Three-B, a subdivision of 8.333 acres of land located in the S.A. Stone Survey No. 10, A-392, 
City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; lots:  44; reserves:  1; blocks:  4. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BAYOU CROSSING SECTION THREE, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 8.670 ACRES OF LAND LOCATED IN THE JAMES LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, A-275, CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; ALSO BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “A-2”, 
BLOCK 1, BAYOU CROSSING SECTION TWO PARTIAL REPLAT NO. ONE RECORDED AT PLAT NO. 
20130258, F.B.C.P.R., AND A PARTIAL REPLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4, J. M. DONLEY SUBDIVISION RECORDED 
AT VOL. 1, PG. 20, F.B.C.P.R. 



 
PAGE 4 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

 
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Bayou Crossing Section Three is located off of Grand Cane Lane in the Bayou 
Crossing Development.  It is in the City Limits and immediately northeast of Bayou Crossing Section Two. 
 
The proposed Final Plat contains 8.67 acres and 37 residential lots.  All proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in 
width and 6,600 square feet in size.  The Plat conforms to the approved Land Plan for Bayou Crossing and to the 
Preliminary Plat, which was approved by the Planning Commission on June 18, 2014. 
 
There being no further issues or conflicts with City standards, staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Bayou Crossing Section Three. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many plats are left in Bayou Crossing. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that this is the final section. 

 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve the Final Plat of 
Bayou Crossing Section Three, a subdivision of 8.670 acres of land located in the James Lowery 1/3 League, A-
275, City Of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; also being a partial replat of Reserve “A-2”, block 1, Bayou 
Crossing Section Two Partial Replat No. One recorded at Plat No. 20130258, F.B.C.P.R., and a partial replat of lots 
3 And 4, J. M. Donley Subdivision recorded at Vol. 1, Pg. 20, F.B.C.P.R. 
 
Additional Discussion:  

• Commissioner Casias inquired that the size of the subdivision is the reason that it does not have to comply 
with anything as far as the recreational area.  

• Mr. Tanner replied that this one predates those requirements. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired if it changed developers. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that the Land Plan dates back to 2004. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if we changed this plat to eliminate the retention pond. 
• Mr. Tanner replied yes. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many entrances there are. 
• Mr. Tanner replied three on this plat.  
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how many entrances there are to this subdivision. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he does not have that information off hand. 
• Commissioner Parson inquired if we know many entrances are required for a subdivision of this size. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he does not have that information but it looks exactly like the land plan that was 

approved in 2004. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that in 2004, there were not as many lots. A certain amount of lots were not 

approved because of the retention plan that we had. Just wants to make sure that this fits the rule that the 
City has.  

• Mr. Tanner replied that he and Charles reviewed it and believe it meets all applicable requirements. He can 
go back and check the number of access points and lots. 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that he would like that to happen before this plat is approved. How many 
houses are going to be in this subdivision? 

• Mr. Tanner replied that he does not know the total amount of residential homes, but 132 total were 
approved. 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if there is an issue with distance front to back with one entrance. 
• Commissioner Parsons replied that it may be that as well. We approved this at one time and then we had a 

flood problem and then we revised it. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that the developer said there is a total of 95 lots, which is fewer than the original land 

plan. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired how that could be. How can you go from more to less and increase the 

amount of ground you put lots on? 
• Carl Stevens of 46 Ambleside Crescent, Sugar Land, Texas, stepped forward to address the Commission. 

He is a developer in Bayou Crossing and stated the whole development has fewer lots than the original 
land plan had. 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that when the original land plan was presented, there were sections of that 
land plan that were dedicated for things like retention ponds. 

• Mr. Stevens replied that all that was recaptured and converted was 0.79 acres and the lots now are larger 
than the original land plan. 



 
PAGE 5 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that he would vote to approve this assuming that it passes the ordinance at 
the time based on the required number of entrances for a subdivision of its size. He wants confirmation. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that the subdivision meets the ordinances that applied to it at the time, including 
entrances. 
 

Action Taken:  Upon voting, the motion carried by a vote of four “ayes” and two abstentions.  Ayes: Chairperson 
Pavlovsky, Vice Chairperson Phipps, Commissioners Casias and Urbish.  Abstentions:  Commissioners 
Parsons and Poldrack. 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION NORTH SECTION 
ELEVEN, A SUBDIVISION OF 8.924 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, 
ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 35 LOTS, 0 RESERVES, 3 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary: The proposed Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Eleven is located off of Blossom 
Terrace Lane in the northeast part of the overall Bonbrook Plantation Development.  It is in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155.  The Plat contains approximately 8.924 acres and thirty-five (35) single-
family residential lots. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is 65 feet in width.  Each lot is a minimum of 65 feet in width at the front building line.  
In the lot summary table, some lots (3) are noted as being less than 65-foot lots due to being less than 50 feet at the right-
of-way.  The subdivision is in compliance with the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation.  The Planning 
Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of this subdivision on January 22, 2014. 
 
The proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the Preliminary Plat, or with the 
approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation.  That being said, staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Eleven. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack to approve the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation North Section Eleven, a subdivision of 8.924 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, 
Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 35 lots, 0 reserves, 3 blocks. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION NORTH SECTION 
TWELVE, A SUBDIVISION OF 8.522 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, 
ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 34 LOTS, 0 RESERVES, 2 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The proposed Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Twelve is located off of Blossom 
Terrace Lane in the northeast part of the overall Bonbrook Plantation Development.  It is in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 
(ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 155.  The plat contains approximately 8.522 acres and thirty-four (34) single-
family residential lots. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is 65 feet in width.  Each lot is a minimum of 65 feet in width at the front building line.  
In the lot summary table, some lots (5) are noted as being less than 65-foot lots due to being less than 50 feet at the right-
of-way.  The subdivision is in compliance with the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation.  The Planning 
Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of this subdivision on January 22, 2014. 
 
The proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Preliminary Plat, or with 
the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation.  That being said, staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Twelve. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that these are pretty good sized lots. 

 
Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish to approve the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation North Section Twelve, a subdivision of 8.522 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, 
abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 34 lots, 0 reserves, 2 blocks. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

9. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF BONBROOK PLANTATION NORTH SECTION 
THIRTEEN, A SUBDIVISION OF 19.476 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, 



 
PAGE 6 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 88 LOTS, 3 RESERVES (1.031 ACRES), 3 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Thirteen is located off of Reading Road, 
adjacent to Bridlewood Estates, in the east central part of Bonbrook Plantation.  The proposed Plat contains 19.476 acres, 
88 residential lots, and three (3) reserves consisting of 1.031 acres. 
 
The proposed lots are a minimum of fifty feet (50’) in width and 6,000 square feet in size.  This is in accordance with the 
approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation, which calls for fifty-foot (50’) lots in this location of the development.  The 
Land Plan is attached for reference.  The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission 
on June 18, 2014. 
 
The proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Bonbrook 
Plantation North Section Thirteen. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps to approve the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation North Section Thirteen, a subdivision of 19.476 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin 
League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 88 lots, 3 reserves (1.031 acres), 3 blocks. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

10. HEAR AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION REGARDING A POTENTIAL MULTI-FAMILY PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
 
Executive Summary:  Mr. Thomas Juarez of J.B. Granada Construction has requested an opportunity to present a 
potential multi-family Planned Unit Development (PUD) on Airport Avenue.  Specifically, the project would be 
located near the southwest corner of Airport Avenue and FM 2218 and would contain 203 units.  Mr. Juarez 
approached City staff regarding multi-family residential development of this location and was notified of the City’s 
parking requirements of four (4) spaces per one-bedroom unit, five (5) spaces per two-bedroom unit, and six (6) 
spaces per three-bedroom unit.  The parking requirements would be prohibitive of this development as proposed.  
Therefore it was communicated to Mr. Juarez that the project could only be done through a PUD, recommended by 
the Planning Commission and approved by City Council.  Before spending additional time on the project, it was 
recommended by staff that the concept be presented to the Planning Commission to receive direction.  It is 
important to note that the proposal is for owner-occupied condominiums as opposed to renter-occupied apartments; 
however, it would be difficult if not impossible for the City to regulate whether they are owner-occupied in the future.  
If approved by the Planning Commission and City Council, the PUD would be subject to the West Fort Bend 
Management District standards. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired where this would be located along Airport. 
• Mr., Tanner replied that it is across from B.F. Terry High School. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if it fronts FM 2218. 
• Tom Juarez of 1621 North Falling Leaf Drive in Katy, Texas, stepped forward to address the Commission 

and stated that project would not have frontage on FM 2218 and he would like to keep it this way for 
security reasons.  This project is a condo project for sale. This is not a typical plan because every unit has a 
garage where they can walk through the building to the garage. Every building has garages in the building 
itself. The floor plans, for instance, Unit E1, shows the foyer going into the garage. This is an entrance to 
the building itself. The doors are to the right and far left are an entrance to all of the units. My presentation 
shows that this is not a typical apartment building. Each unit has 1.5 or 2.5 baths, so it is not a normal 
renting unit. The two bedroom units have 2.5 bath and the three bedroom units have 2.5 bath.  I want to 
establish an agreement with the City that these units are under restriction and cannot be rented to 
individuals. Each unit will pay its own taxes like a regular residential home. 

• Ms. McConathy inquired how that would be restricted. 
• Mr. Juarez replied with deed restrictions. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired that if he owned one, he could not rent it out. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that he could not restrict on that aspect. 
• Mr. Tschirhart stated that if someone owns it and chooses to rent it out, they can. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that the intention here is for people to own this residence for 30 years. 



 
PAGE 7 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

• Mr. Juarez stated that an apartment building pays school taxes but each unit would have to pay the tax like 
a residual home. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired what the difference in dollars is. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that residential taxes compared to an apartment building are different. He is unsure of 

the exact figures, but you would be paying the value of the condo. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that it does not matter what it is called, CAD will attach an appraised value 

to it. 
• Mr. Juarez stated that each unit, with all amenities, will be a higher cost and revenue than a regular 

apartment building. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that that is true because the value by the CAD is set is based on the square 

footage of the building. As a developer, what would you suggest would be an ideal mix between own 
housing and rental housing? 

• Mr. Juarez inquired that Commissioner Parsons repeat the question. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if you were developing a city, what would you set as a ideal for the number 

of units that are rental versus the number of units that are owned. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that there are no condo projects or condos that are sellable in the City of Rosenberg. 

The research has been done and none were found. The difference here is that there is nothing like this 
here in Rosenberg. 

• Commissioner Casias inquired if Mr. Juarez has developed something like this in any other area. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that this is the first time because this is the first time that the garages have been 

included. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that there may be some condos for sale built for that purpose in Brazos 

Town Center. His concern is that the City is heavily laden with rental properties.  
• Mr. Tanner stated that the City is at 48% rental occupancy and 28% multi-family housing. 
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that there is no pricing structure on these condos. 
• Mr. Juarez replied not yet. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired how it is known that these are economically feasible if you do not know 

what you are going to sell them for. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that the A1 unit will sell for $103,612, which is the one bedroom. The A2 will sell for 

$116,176. The B1 will sell for $137,879. The B2 will sell for $148,000. They are averaging $111 to $117 per 
square foot per unit. B3 will sell for $144,000 for a smaller two bedrooms. The three bedrooms are selling 
for $164,000 and $174,000. The two bedrooms range from $111 to $102 per square foot and the three 
bedrooms range from $113 to $114 per square foot. The uniqueness of it more than anything is the fact that 
most townhomes and condos do not have two bedrooms and 2.5 baths. The beauty of the project is its 
uniqueness. Its location is right next to Highway 59, all three schools, close to shopping, 7-10 minutes from 
Sugar Land. This would be good for the City for singles, elderly, and empty nesters. The amenities are 
good. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if this conforms to requirements of WFBMD standards. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that they have not gotten to that step yet. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired what the distance is from Airport Avenue to the narrow end of this property. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that he is not sure. 
• Mr. Tanner replied about 1,500 feet. 
• Mr. Juarez replied that 1,800 feet would be his educated guess. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired what was meant when Mr. Tanner said it would raise the bar in other areas. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that if the Planning Commission recommended moving forward with the developer, we 

will gain flexibility from some of the standards. In this case it would be the parking that they would be 
required to exceed other standards that the City has. They would have to do a number of items that go 
above and beyond what the City would typically require. 

• Commissioner Casias inquired that when looking at the variances, it says 203 units are to be developed but 
isn’t the number 200 units per multi-family. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that he will have to look at acreage and density requirements, but density might be an 
issue as well. The main thing with multi-family developments is the parking requirements. To avoid this, we 
have to do a plan development. 

• Commissioner Casias stated that if entrances and exits to this development are on Airport, safety and 
welfare need to be considered. Are there turning lanes here? 

• Mr. Tanner replied that if this is approved by the Planning Commission, this developer would have to do a 
traffic impact analysis or study. Their traffic engineer would have to determine what offsite improvements 
are required as far as turning lanes, so that would be a component of the project, too.    

• Commissioner Casias stated that this is especially important because it is right by the high school. 
• Mr. Juarez stated that this is not even 14 units per acre; it is 13.5 units per acre. It is below the amount 



 
PAGE 8 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

stated in the ordinance. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that the ordinance might say 12, but that needs to be verified. The main thing is the 

parking. The density requirement will have to be looked at. The will be one or two things here that will not 
comply with the ordinance. 

• Mr. Juarez stated that there are 508 cars including 203 attached garages and 387 parking spaces included. 
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that one of the requirements of a planned unit development is all single 

family residential lots shall front on a public street right-of-way. Does that meet requirements?  
• Mr. Tanner replied that these would not be separate lots. That would be more like town homes, patio 

homes, or single family homes, but this property is not going to be subdivided. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if that is a requirement of a PUD by ordinance. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it is, but these are not single family residential lots. It would be considered multi-

family use by City Ordinance. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired about the mention of an exit going to FM 2218. Where is that going to be? 
• Mr. Juarez replied that it is not, but if it is required, it can be put in. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that if there is a catastrophic event on Airport, nobody will be able to get in or 

out of this complex. 
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that the requirements state that there must be two separate entrances when 

there is that much distance in between.  
• Mr. Juarez replied that the concern is understood. The front part is commercial. La Michoacana Market is 

already there, but there will be also strip center buildings on the front facing Airport. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that there is a request from the Commission for direction at this time. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that we have far in excess of units that could be rented. We should not add 

those because people from other units move into these and those other units go bad. Not in favor of 
addition of multi-family development. Concentration of individual properties to individual people should be 
focused on. 

• Commissioner Urbish stated that the problem is that people rent out those properties also. There are a lot 
of people that would be attracted to this kind of development. Typically, if someone owns their own place, 
they will not run it down near as bad a something rented. Likes the idea of it because Rosenberg is growing 
and this is different from an apartment complex. 

• Vice Chairperson Phipps stated his agreement and replied that we must also look at median price of 
$115,000. Someone will not rent it out for $500-$600 a month, so if it does get subleased, it will be taken 
care of by someone who can afford it.  

• Mr. Juarez replied that it would be $1,500 per month. The amenities exceed any rental property.  
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that we have half of the community that is transient, then there is not an 

attachment to the community. He is not big on any kind of multi-family development. An investor could 
easily come in and buy some units and rent them out. 

• Commissioner Parsons replied that this a price range of $103,600 - $174,100. In today’s market, this is not 
a growth item for housing. We have 20 years of housing that is already platted that will sell for the same 
amount, so all this does is add to that inventory which is not in the best interest to the City of Rosenberg for 
the next 25 to 50 years. 

• Mr. Juarez stated that this is beneficial to the City of Rosenberg because it is a different option for people. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Poldrack moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to decline from making a 
recommendation of support to City Council for this proposed multi-family Planned Unit Development.   
 
Additional Discussion:  

• Commissioner Parsons stated that even if the Commission does not support this project, it can still go to 
City Council to be decided on. 

• Vice Chairperson Phipps stated that the ingress and egress issues need to be looked at. 
• Mr. Juarez stated that the Fire Marshal would do that. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that if this project were to go forward that there would be administrative review process 

beyond the Planning Commission and City Council. They would have to meet all fire code and mitigate 
traffic concerns. 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that if those changes are made, Mr. Juarez may come back and present it 
again. 

 
Action Taken:  Upon voting, the motion failed by a vote of three “ayes” to three “noes”.  Ayes: Chairperson 
Pavlovsky, Vice Chairperson Phipps, and Commissioner Urbish.  Noes: Commissioners Poldrack, Parsons, 
and Casias. 
 
No additional action taken. 



 
PAGE 9 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

 
11. HEAR AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION BY GSSW REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS REGARDING A 

POTENTIAL MULTI-FAMILY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF. 
 
Executive Summary:  Thomas W. Sabin, Jr., of GSSW Real Estate Investments has requested an opportunity to 
present a preliminary plan for a multi-family development, Fountains of Rosenberg Phase II, adjacent to the existing 
Fountains of Rosenberg multi-family development off of Fountains Drive, south of I-69.  The proposed addition 
would contain 114 units.  Mr. Sabin contacted City staff regarding multi-family residential development of this 
location and was notified of the City’s parking requirements of four (4) spaces per one-bedroom unit, five (5) spaces 
per two-bedroom unit, and six (6) spaces per three-bedroom unit.  Like the previous project, the parking 
requirements would be prohibitive of this development as proposed.  Therefore it was communicated to Mr. Sabin 
that the project could only be done through a PUD recommended by the Planning Commission and approved by 
City Council.  Before spending additional time on the project, it was suggested by staff that the concept be 
presented to the Planning Commission to receive direction.  Also, similar to the previous Agenda item, if approved 
by the Planning Commission and City Council, the PUD would be subject to the West Fort Bend Management 
District standards. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Tom W. Sabin, Jr., of 6239 Northwood Road, Dallas, Texas, stepped forward to address the Commission. 

His group bought the 184-unit Fountains property a year ago from Maple Avenue Economic Development 
Corporation, which was a non-profit organization. Fuller Real Estate Partners owns 65 acres to the west 
including a 5-acre parcel immediately adjacent to our western boundary. Fountains Apartments were built in 
2002. This plan for Fountains II has 114 units within it and we would tear down the existing clubhouse 
facility and rebuild it to tie the two properties together. This plan had direct access garage for 18-25 units. It 
would be $15 million, $160 per square foot with $110 in hard cost and $35 in soft cost plus land. It is hard to 
see how this property may develop if not to expand the Fountains.  The east side backs up to multi-family 
and drainage to southern boundary. We would like to build a 2014 product there to enhance the 184 units. 
We have a forty year HUD loan on this but we expect to have this in our hand much sooner. We are 
operated by a life insurance company and thirty years is short term in our thinking.  We do not plan to show 
up and leave.  

• Commissioner Casias inquired of Mr. Tanner if these projects are being brought to the Commission 
because they do not comply with multi-family ordinances to be put into a plan unit development. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that this is the only way to do the project. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired if future variances will be requested. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that our housing market is booming, so there are many requests like this. It is up to the 

Commission if each consider each project on its own merit. 
• Commissioner Casias stated that there is a parking issue and that this is a three-story multi-family complex 

when the ordinance only allows two-story developments. This is a new purchase however, our ordinance 
limits overall multi-family development size to 200 units.  As a Phase II, this project does not comply with 
the ordinance. 

•  Mr. Tanner replied that these projects have not been reviewed and that will be done, however the parking 
requirement is a challenge, so that is the main thing to bring up.  A detailed review for compliance with all 
City ordinances has not been done.  The applicants are presenting an overall plan to determine if it will be 
something the City is agreeable to. 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that if we want to encourage more multi-family developments, the parking 
requirements should be changed. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that the Commission does not want to change the parking. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if Mr. Tanner knew the apartment occupancy in Rosenberg. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that the only way to generate that data would be to call all the apartment complexes. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if there is a demand for more apartments or is the demand being created 

by the developers?  The only reason the parking ordinance was written was to discourage the continuance 
of the proliferation of apartment complexes. 

• Councilor McConathy replied that she understands his reservations but the City has already done a PUD 
for MUD 144 with Sam Yager. 

• Mr. Sabin stated that he understands that he likely will not change the Commission’s mind but their units 
are full and they could rent these new units immediately if he had them in hand. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired how old the project is that is there now. 
• Mr. Sabin replied that it was built in 2002. We have spent over $400,000 out there. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that he appreciates that they invested here but that implies that renters tear 



 
PAGE 10 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

up the property. 
• Mr. Sabin replied that the main reason they have invested as much as they have thus far is the property 

was not very well managed.   
• Commissioner Poldrack stated that it is detrimental to the community to have half of the population 

transient. 
• Mr. Sabin replied he lives in Dallas and there is a large amount of rental property up there and it is 

generally very nice.  For this adjacent property, it is a logical step to develop Phase II. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that there are many issues with this project and our ordinances. The three-

story building height and parking are the big ones. 
• Mr. Sabin replied that a two-story project can be built if that is preferable. 

 
No action taken. 
 

12. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON EXHIBIT C – THIRD REVISION, A DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 
BONBROOK PLANTATION, BEING 448.62 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, 
ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Third Revision to the Development Plan for Bonbrook Plantation contains 448.62 acres and 
1,300 residential lots.  Bonbrook Plantation (Fort Bend County MUD No. 155) is located on both the north and south sides 
of Reading Road between Benton Road and Bridlewood Estates in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 
 
It is important to note that, of the 1,300 lots suggested in the proposed, revised Development Plan, plats have already 
been recorded for 1,044 lots (or approximately 80 percent of the development).  Additionally, plats are in the review 
process for 176 lots.  The reason for the revised Development Plan is to change a 23.4-acre tract currently designated as 
multi-family residential to single-family residential, sixty-foot (60’) lots. 
 
The subject area is generally located at the northeast corner of Benton and Reading Roads.  The change represents a 
likely decrease in the density of the development.  Further, all proposed lots would comply with current standards.  Overall, 
54 percent of the lots in the development will be sixty feet (60’) or greater in width at build-out, compared to only 42 percent 
per the previously-approved Land Plan. 
 
If recommended for approval by the Planning Commission, the next step would be City Council consideration of a 
Resolution amending this exhibit of the Development Agreement for MUD No. 155.  Following a detailed review, 
City staff finds no issues with the proposed amendment.  Single-family residential could be considered a better use 
for this location.  The area must still comply with all platting requirements, and preliminary and final plats must come 
before the Planning Commission.  Staff recommends the Planning Commission make a recommendation of 
approval to City Council for the Exhibit C – Third Revision, a Development Plan for Bonbrook Plantation. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Summary: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack to approve the Exhibit C – 
Third Revision, a development plan for Bonbrook Plantation, being 448.62 acres of land out of the Wiley Martin 
League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

13. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL REGARDING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH DRY CREEK (HOUSTON) ASLI VII, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY, IN ASSOCIATION WITH FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 
184. 
 
Executive Summary:  Over the last several months, City staff has been in discussions with a developer regarding the 
development of an approximately 502.6-acre tract at the southwest corner of A. Meyers and Berdette Roads, immediately 
south of Bridlewood Estates.  The tract is largely in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), with the exception of the City 
Limits abutting Dry Creek, and in proposed Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 184.  The Development 
Agreement is being brought to the Planning Commission to make a recommendation to City Council.  Please note that 
due to the size of the associated Exhibits, they have not been included in this packet in order to conserve supplies.  A print 
copy of the full Development Agreement and all Exhibits is available for review in the City Secretary’s office. 
 
Following are main points of the Agreement: 

1. The development will follow the City’s current “Subdivision” Ordinance and Design Standards for public 
infrastructure 

2. Plats will come before the Planning Commission and must comply with lot size and other applicable requirements. 



 
PAGE 11 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

3. The development will meet the City’s current parkland dedication requirements, which require more amenities and 
parkland to be set aside than in the previous ordinance. 

4. The Development Agreement contains a safeguard regarding the improvement of A. Meyers Road.  It is currently 
anticipated that Fort Bend County will construct A. Meyers as a major thoroughfare; however if the County doesn’t 
commence work, the developer must construct the southern half or two (2) future eastbound lanes of the road in 
phases before the subdivision is platted (see Agreement for details). 

 
Overall, the development represents an improvement in terms of lot sizes and amenities compared to what could be 
developed in the City or its ETJ under the current ordinances.  City staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Development Agreement for Fort Bend County MUD No. 
184. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired is this is in concurrence with development discussed in Executive Session 

some time ago. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it was. 

 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps, to recommend approval to 
City Council regarding a Development Agreement with Dry Creek (Houston) ASLI VII, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, in association with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 184. 
 
Additional Discussion:  

• Commissioner Casias inquired if this Agreement will have a development timeline. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he believes that is in the utility agreement but that would need to be verified.  It is 

something that has been discussed with the developer in the past and he believes that requirement is in 
one of these two agreements but would need to verify. 

• Commissioner Parsons modified his motion to support that 10 year timeline; Vice Chairperson Phipps 
seconded the revised motion. 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired about the product to be placed on the lots and what the starting price 
range is targeted to be. 

• Vahid Tabrizi of 569 Rancho, Houston, Texas, stepped forward to address the Commission and stated this 
development is being contracted with three builders. We anticipate prices to start at the 60-foot level from 
$200,000 to $350,000 for 75-foot lots. 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if there would be any lots below $200,000. 
• Mr. Tabrizi replied that that cannot be requested from builders what the price point will be. Only the square 

footage may be dictated. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired what the square footage will be. 
• Mr. Tabrizi replied that the minimum is 1,800. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired who the builders would be. 
• Mr. Tabrizi replied that the builders are Meritage Homes, Hovnanian Homes, and Westin Homes. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired when the expected start date is for the development. 
• Mr. Tabrizi replied that construction will be 3 to 4 months. 
• Mr. Tschirhart clarified that this recommendation to present this to City Council is subject to the ten year 

platting requirement. 
 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps, to recommend approval to 
City Council regarding a Development Agreement with Dry Creek (Houston) ASLI VII, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company, in association with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 184 with the inclusion of a 
provision that the Agreement provides for a ten-year subdivision completion requirement for Stonecreek Estates.  
Upon voting, the motion carried unanimously by those present. 
 

14. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A GENERAL PLAN OF STONECREEK ESTATES, BEING 502.6 
ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE WILEY MARTIN SURVEY, A-56, E.P. EVERETT SURVEY, A-387, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The proposed General/Land Plan for Stonecreek Estates consists of 502.6 acres and up to 1,400 
single-family residential lots.  As discussed in the previous agenda item, the development is located at the southwest 
corner of A. Meyers and Berdette Roads, immediately south of Bridlewood Estates.  It is largely in the Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ), with the exception of the City limits abutting Dry Creek, and in proposed Fort Bend County Municipal 
Utility District No. 184. 



 
PAGE 12 OF 12 * DRAFT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * AUGUST 20, 2014 

 

 
It is noted in the plan that all lots will be a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width, with a minimum average size of 7,000 
square feet and minimum overall size of 6,500 square feet per the current “Subdivision” Ordinance.  There will be 
approximately 349.6 acres of residential development (all single-family) according to the Plan.  The Plan also calls for a 
minimum of 26.3 acres in improved parkland to be set aside (based on 1,400 lots) per City ordinance.  Overall there will be 
105.5 acres of open space including parks, detention, landscape reserves, etc.  Finally, the development has two (2) non-
residential sites consisting of 17 acres. 
 
From the standpoint of traffic impacts, the developer has submitted a traffic impact analysis (TIA) for the City’s review; 
however, the development will mostly impact County roads.  As discussed in the previous agenda item, the development 
will result in the improvement of A. Meyers Road to a major thoroughfare, whether the County completes the project or not.  
Additionally, the development proposes one internal eighty-foot (80’) collector street right-of-way.  Plats will be required to 
comply with the minimum number of access points to a collector. 
 
The proposed Land Plan appears to comply with all applicable standards of the City of Rosenberg related to 
development in the ETJ.  City staff recommends approval of the General/Land Plan for Stonecreek Estates. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if any part of the green space is considered along the Dry Creek area. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it is, but it cannot be used to meet the parkland dedication requirements. 

 
Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to recommend approval to 
City Council of the General Plan of Stonecreek Estates, being 502.6 acres of land out of the Wiley Martin Survey, 
A-56, E.P. Everett Survey, A-387, Fort Bend County, Texas. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

15. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE STAFF REPORT OF CURRENT ACTIVITIES AND REQUESTS 
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on as well 
as other updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning Commission the 
opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
As far as updates, on August 5, 2014, City Council approved the Professional Services Agreement for the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to be updated by Kendig Keast Collaborative.  The Plan was last updated in 1995.  The Planning 
Commission will obviously be involved in this process.  Staff will be providing more information in the near future. 
 
Additionally, staff expects to follow up on the previous discussion of masonry standards in the near future.  We expect that, 
as well as the “Parking” Ordinance amendments that were recently discussed, to be on a City Council Workshop Agenda 
in the fall. 
 
Finally, attached for the Planning Commission’s reference is a report on residential development during the Second 
Quarter (April-June) of 2014; 251 house starts occurred in the City and ETJ during this time period.  This represents 
a 39 percent increase compared to this time last year, which was also a period of rapid growth for Rosenberg.  
Plats were also submitted for 358 new lots.  See the attached report for further details. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
No action taken.  
 

16. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky reminded those present that the Holy Rosary Church would be having barbecue on 

Sunday. 
 

17. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Chairperson Pavlovsky adjourned the Rosenberg Planning Commission Meeting 
at 5:27 p.m. 

 
___________________________ 

Renée LeLaurin, Secretary II 



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Development Agreement Amendment No. 4 / Revised Development Plan 
for Brazos Town Center 

 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Amendment No. 4 to the Town Center, Rosenberg, Texas Development 
Agreement, including Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B,” Brazos Town Center, being 393.8 
acres of land out of the Simon Jones Survey, A-187, Robert E. Handy Survey, A-271, and Jane Long 
League, A-55, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Commission offer a recommendation of approval to City Council of Amendment No. 
4 to the Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center contingent upon the inclusion of specific 
development standards. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
167 (Brazos Town Center) City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B,” Brazos Town Center 
2. Amendment No. 4 to Development Agreement - Draft 
3. Vicinity Map 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
NewQuest Properties, the developer of Brazos Town Center, has requested a fourth amendment to their 
Development Agreement and Conceptual Plan.  The proposed Amendment No. 4 and Revised Exhibit “B,” 
Conceptual Plan, involves two (2) tracts.  A vicinity map is attached for reference: 

1. The 21-acre tract located on the north side of Town Center Boulevard, approximately 500’ east of FM 
2218 and currently designated for commercial development on the approved Land Plan; and, 

2. The 20-acre tract located on the east side of Town Center Boulevard, approximately 700’ north of 
Commercial Drive and currently designated for townhome development on the approved Land Plan. 

 
The developer proposes to develop the 21-acre tract as fifty-five-foot (55’) single-family residential lots.  The 
“Subdivision” Ordinance currently requires sixty-foot (60’) lots.  To compensate for the reduction in lot size, the 
developer proposes the following standards be added to the Development Agreement: 

 Residences on said single-family lots shall be a minimum of 2,000 square feet in size; 
 Residences shall have three-sided masonry exterior; 
 The tract shall have a maximum of 73 lots or 3.4 units per acre; 
 The tract shall have a minimum of three (3) acres in landscape/open space reserves or .04 acres per lot; 

and, 
 The minimum lot size shall be 7,000 square feet. 

 
Additionally, the developer proposes to develop the 20-acre tract as twenty-four-foot (24’) to twenty-eight-foot 
(28’) townhome lots.  The approved Conceptual Plan calls for the thirty-foot (30’) townhome lots and the 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
“Subdivision” Ordinance currently requires twenty-five-foot (25’) lots for townhomes.  To compensate for the 
reduction in lot size, the developer proposes the following standards be added to the Development Agreement: 

 Residences on said townhome lots shall be a minimum of 1,700 square feet in size; 
 Residences shall have three-sided masonry exterior with a landscape buffer between buildings; 
 The tract shall have a maximum of 139 units or seven (7) units per acre; 
 The tract shall have a minimum of 5.5 acres in landscape/open space reserves or .04 acres per unit; 
 Minimum fifty-foot (50’) street right-of-way width; 
 Minimum twenty-seven-foot (27’) pavement width measured from inside of curb to inside of curb; 
 Minimum average lot size of 2,900 square feet; 
 Minimum twenty-foot (20’) front building lines on all lots; and, 
 A two-car garage shall be required on each lot. 

 
Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to City Council on the revised 
Conceptual Plan and Development Agreement amendment/s.  A recommendation of approval would be 
conditioned on the above bullet points / standards.  With the standards proposed, staff believes the resulting 
product will be equal to or better than that of lots that comply with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, but that don’t 
have similar standards.  Therefore staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City 
Council of Amendment No. 4 to the Town Center, Rosenberg, Texas Development Agreement and Developer’s 
Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B,” Brazos Town Center. 
  
 
 





 

 

AMENDMENT  NO. 4 TO THE TOWN CENTER, ROSENBERG, TEXAS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 

  This  Amendment  No.  4  to  the  Town  Center,  Rosenberg,  Texas  Development  Agreement 
(“Amendment”) is effective as of ____________________, between THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a 
Texas  home‐rule municipal  corporation  (“City”),  and A‐S  70 HWY  59  –  FM  762,  L.P.,  a  Texas  limited 
partnership (the “Developer”). 

  WHEREAS,  the  parties  entered  into  The  Town  Center,  Rosenberg,  Texas  Development 
Agreement  dated,  December  7,  2004  (the  “Original  Development  Agreement”;  as  amended,  the 
“Development Agreement”) whereby the City and the Developer agreed upon the terms and conditions 
for the development, financing and reimbursement for certain infrastructure related to a development 
in  the  City  now  commonly  referred  to  as  Brazos  Town  Center;  and  the  parties  entered  into  an 
Amendment No. 1 Agreement dated, October 4, 2005  (“Amendment No. 1”); and  the parties entered 
into  an  Amendment  No.  2  Agreement    dated,  June  7,  2011  (“Amendment  No.  2”);  and  the  parties 
entered into an Amendment No. 3 Agreement dated, December 18, 2013 (“Amendment No. 3”); and the 
parties seek to enter into an Amendment No. 4 Agreement. 

  WHEREAS, the Developer has determined that it is necessary to amend the original conceptual 
plan to designate additional residential tracts and reconfigure lot sizes within the accepted lot amounts. 

  WHEREAS, the parties seek to amend the Development Agreement as provided herein and enter 
into this Amendment. 

  For  and  in  consideration  of  the mutual  promises,  obligations,  covenants  and  benefits  herein 
contained,  and  for  other  good  and  valuable  consideration,  the  City  and  the  Developer  agree  and 
contract as follows: 

1. The  term  “Development  Agreement”  in  the  preamble  of  the Development  Agreement  is 
amended to include the terms and conditions contained in this Amendment No. 4. 
 

2. The  term  “Developer’s Conceptual Plan”  in  the preamble of  the Development Agreement 
shall refer to “Developer’s Conceptual Plan Revised Exhibit B,” which is attached hereto and 
labeled as such.   

 
3. Exhibit  B  attached  to  the Development Agreement  is  hereby  deleted  and  replaced  in  its 

entirety with the “Developer’s Conceptual Plan Revised Exhibit B” attached hereto. 
 
4. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, as amended by paragraph 2 above, provides for the option to 

develop 24’x110’ and 28’ x110’ town home  lots  in  lieu of 30’x100’ town home  lots on the 
20‐acre tract as shown  in “Exhibit B” to the Development Agreement.   Residences on said 
town home  lots shall be a minimum of 1,700 square  feet  in size and  three‐sided masonry 
exterior with a landscape buffer between buildings.  Further, the tract shall be subject to the 
following requirements: 

a. Maximum of 139 units or seven (7) units per acre; 



 

 

b. Minimum of 5.5 acres in landscape/open space reserves or .04 acres per unit; 
c. Minimum fifty‐foot (50’) street right‐of‐way width; 
d. Minimum twenty‐seven‐foot (27’) pavement width measured from inside of curb to 

inside of curb; 
e. Minimum average lot size of 2,900 square feet; and, 
f. Minimum twenty‐foot (20’) front building lines on all lots. 

 
5. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, as amended by paragraph 2 above, provides for the option to 

develop 55’ x130’ single‐family lots in lieu of a commercial use on the 21‐acre tract as shown 
in “Exhibit B” to the Development Agreement.  Residences on said single‐family lots shall be 
a minimum of 2,000 square feet in size and three‐sided masonry exterior.  Further, the tract 
shall be subject to the following requirements: 

a. Maximum of 73 lots or 3.4 units per acre; 
b. Minimum of three  (3) acres  in  landscape/open space reserves or  .04 acres per  lot; 

and, 
c. Minimum lot size of 7,000 square feet. 

 
6. Except as modified and amended by this Amendment, all of the terms and conditions of the 

Development Agreement remain in full force and effect.   
 
7. This Amendment may  be  executed  in  two  or more  counterparts,  each  of which  shall  be 

deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.    Facsimile  signatures and/or  signatures  scanned and emailed hereon  shall be 
treated for all purposes as original signatures. 

 
8. Capitalized  terms  used,  but  not  otherwise  defined  herein,  shall  have  the  meaning(s) 

ascribed to them in the Development Agreement. 
 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS] 

   



 

 

            DEVELOPER: 

            A‐S 70 HWY 59‐FM762, L.P., a Texas limited partnership   

BY:   A‐S 70, L.C., a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Steve D. Alvis 
  Member‐Manager 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 

 

CITY: 

City of Rosenberg, Texas, a municipal corporation 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Robert Gracia 
  City Manager 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Scott Tschirhart 
  City Attorney 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

Amendment
No. 4

Amendment
No. 4Amendment

No. 5

PERSIMMON

CLEISTES

MAJESTIC OAK

OLEANDER

DEL WEBB

BUR OAK

VIS
TA

READING

COMMERCIAL

DELTA

VILLAGE CLUB
TOWN CENTER

B F
 TE

RR
Y

WALL

RIC
HA

RD

ARCHER RANCH

FISHER BEND

AL
LW

RIG
HT

BE
LL

 RI
DG

E

KE
NT

 VA
LL

EY

PLAZA

GR
AY

SO
N R

UN

@A762

@A1640

@A2218

§̈¦£¤96 594

§̈¦£¤96 594

SOUTHWEST FWY

@A2218

1 Inch = 500 Feet

1:6,000

Brazos Town Center
Amendments 4 & 5

Vicinity Map
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 500 1,000 1,500
Feet

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad
FBCAD 2014 2nd Quater Parcels
Amendment No. 4
Amendment No. 5
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: September 09, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\BTC_Amendments_4and5.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston
Area Council, which reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of
this data is strictly prohibited absent written consent from the Houston-
Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Development Agreement Amendment No. 5 / Revised Development Plan 
for Brazos Town Center 

 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Amendment No. 5 to the Town Center, Rosenberg, Texas Development 
Agreement, including Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B,” Brazos Town Center, being 393.8 
acres of land out of the Simon Jones Survey, A-187, Robert E. Handy Survey, A-271, and Jane Long 
League, A-55, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Commission offer a recommendation of approval to City Council of Amendment No. 
5 of the Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center contingent upon the inclusion of specific 
development standards. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
167 (Brazos Town Center) City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B” Brazos Town Center 
2. Amendment No. 5 to Development Agreement - Draft 
3. Vicinity Map 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
NewQuest Properties, the developer of Brazos Town Center, has requested a fifth amendment to their 
Development Agreement and Conceptual Plan.  The proposed Amendment No. 5 and Revised Exhibit “B,” 
Conceptual Plan, involves one (1) tract.  A vicinity map is attached for reference: 

1. The vacant 10.8-acre tract located at the intersection of Town Center Boulevard and Vista Drive and 
currently designated for office development on the approved Land Plan 
 

The developer proposes to develop the 10.8-acre tract as 234 apartment units.  City ordinances contain a 
number of requirements with which the project would not comply, including the number of parking spaces, 
density (14 units per acre maximum), maximum of 200 units, and two (2) story maximum height.  To 
compensate for not meeting these requirements, the developer proposes the following standards be added to 
the Development Agreement: 

 Said multifamily development shall be at least seventy (70) percent masonry exterior; 
 Said multifamily development shall be comprised of no more than two hundred thirty-four (234) units, at 

least seventy-five (75) percent of which have direct attached garages, and at least sixty (60) percent of 
which are one-bedroom; 

 Maximum density of twenty-two (22) units per acre; 
 Maximum overall height of three (3) stories, and maximum height of two (2) stories for buildings fronting 

on Town Center Boulevard and Vista Drive rights-of-way; 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 Minimum parking ratios of 1.5 spaces per one-bedroom unit, two (2) spaces per two-bedroom unit, and 

2.5 spaces per three-bedroom unit; and, 
 Site to consist of a minimum of fifteen (15) percent landscaping, open space, and amenities (including 

amenity center, gym, and pool). 
 
Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to City Council on the revised 
Conceptual Plan and Development Agreement amendment/s, or table the item pending the provision of 
additional information and/or standards by the developer.  A recommendation of approval would be conditioned 
on the above bullet points / standards.  With the standards proposed, the resulting product would arguably be 
equal to or better than one that complies with City ordinances, but that doesn’t have similar standards. 
  
 
 





 

 

AMENDMENT  NO. 5 TO THE TOWN CENTER, ROSENBERG, TEXAS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 

  This  Amendment  No.  5  to  the  Town  Center,  Rosenberg,  Texas  Development  Agreement 
(“Amendment”) is effective as of ____________________, between THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a 
Texas  home‐rule municipal  corporation  (“City”),  and A‐S  70 HWY  59  –  FM  762,  L.P.,  a  Texas  limited 
partnership (the “Developer”). 

  WHEREAS,  the  parties  entered  into  The  Town  Center,  Rosenberg,  Texas  Development 
Agreement  dated,  December  7,  2004  (the  “Original  Development  Agreement”;  as  amended,  the 
“Development Agreement”) whereby the City and the Developer agreed upon the terms and conditions 
for the development, financing and reimbursement for certain infrastructure related to a development 
in  the  City  now  commonly  referred  to  as  Brazos  Town  Center;  and  the  parties  entered  into  an 
Amendment No. 1 Agreement dated, October 4, 2005  (“Amendment No. 1”); and  the parties entered 
into  an  Amendment  No.  2  Agreement    dated,  June  7,  2011  (“Amendment  No.  2”);  and  the  parties 
entered into an Amendment No. 3 Agreement dated, December 18, 2013 (“Amendment No. 3”); and the 
parties entered  into an Amendment No. 4 Agreement dated September ___, 2014  (“Amendment No. 
4”); and the parties seek to enter into an Amendment No. 5 Agreement. 

  WHEREAS, the Developer has determined that it is necessary to amend the original conceptual 
plan to designate additional residential tracts. 

  WHEREAS, the parties seek to amend the Development Agreement as provided herein and enter 
into this Amendment. 

  For  and  in  consideration  of  the mutual  promises,  obligations,  covenants  and  benefits  herein 
contained,  and  for  other  good  and  valuable  consideration,  the  City  and  the  Developer  agree  and 
contract as follows: 

1. The  term  “Development  Agreement”  in  the  preamble  of  the Development  Agreement  is 
amended to include the terms and conditions contained in this Amendment No. 5. 
 

2. The  term  “Developer’s Conceptual Plan”  in  the preamble of  the Development Agreement 
shall refer to “Developer’s Conceptual Plan Revised Exhibit B,” which is attached hereto and 
labeled as such.   

 
3. Exhibit  B  attached  to  the Development Agreement  is  hereby  deleted  and  replaced  in  its 

entirety with the “Developer’s Conceptual Plan Revised Exhibit B” attached hereto. 
 
4. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, as amended by paragraph 2 above, provides for the option to 

develop a multifamily community  in  lieu of an office use on  the 10.8‐acre  tract  labeled as 
Restricted  Reserve  “A”  in  “Exhibit  B”  to  the  Development  Agreement.    Said multifamily 
development shall be at least seventy (70) percent masonry exterior, comprised of no more 
than  two hundred  thirty‐four  (234) units, at  least  seventy‐five  (75) percent of which have 



 

 

direct attached garages, and at least sixty (60) percent of which are one‐bedroom.  Further, 
the tract shall be subject to the following requirements: 

 
a. Maximum density of twenty‐two (22) units per acre; 
b. Maximum overall height of three (3) stories, and maximum height of two (2) stories 

for buildings fronting on Town Center Boulevard and Vista Drive rights‐of‐way; 
c. Minimum  parking  ratios  of  1.5  spaces  per  one‐bedroom  unit,  two  (2)  spaces  per 

two‐bedroom unit, and 2.5 spaces per three‐bedroom unit; and, 
d. Site  to  consist  of  a  minimum  of  fifteen  (15)  percent  landscaping,  open  space, 

amenities (including amenity center, gym, and pool) or a combination thereof. 
 

5. Except as modified and amended by this Amendment, all of the terms and conditions of the 
Development Agreement remain in full force and effect.   

 
6. This Amendment may  be  executed  in  two  or more  counterparts,  each  of which  shall  be 

deemed an original, but all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.    Facsimile  signatures and/or  signatures  scanned and emailed hereon  shall be 
treated for all purposes as original signatures. 

 
7. Capitalized  terms  used,  but  not  otherwise  defined  herein,  shall  have  the  meaning(s) 

ascribed to them in the Development Agreement. 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS]   



 

 

            DEVELOPER: 

            A‐S 70 HWY 59‐FM762, L.P., a Texas limited partnership   

BY:   A‐S 70, L.C., a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Steve D. Alvis 
  Member‐Manager 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 

 

CITY: 

City of Rosenberg, Texas, a municipal corporation 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Robert Gracia 
  City Manager 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

BY: __________________________________________ 
  Scott Tschirhart 
  City Attorney 

DATE: ________________________________________ 

 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

Amendment
No. 4

Amendment
No. 4Amendment

No. 5

PERSIMMON

CLEISTES

MAJESTIC OAK

OLEANDER

DEL WEBB

BUR OAK

VIS
TA

READING

COMMERCIAL

DELTA

VILLAGE CLUB
TOWN CENTER

B F
 TE

RR
Y

WALL

RIC
HA

RD

ARCHER RANCH

FISHER BEND

AL
LW

RIG
HT

BE
LL

 RI
DG

E

KE
NT

 VA
LL

EY

PLAZA

GR
AY

SO
N R

UN

@A762

@A1640

@A2218

§̈¦£¤96 594

§̈¦£¤96 594

SOUTHWEST FWY

@A2218

1 Inch = 500 Feet

1:6,000

Brazos Town Center
Amendments 4 & 5

Vicinity Map
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 500 1,000 1,500
Feet

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Farm-to-Market
Public Road
Railroad
FBCAD 2014 2nd Quater Parcels
Amendment No. 4
Amendment No. 5
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: September 09, 2014
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2014\BTC_Amendments_4and5.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston
Area Council, which reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of
this data is strictly prohibited absent written consent from the Houston-
Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One, being 70.8 acres of 
land containing 184 lots (60’ x 120’) (65’ x 125’) (75’ x 130’ typ.) and seven reserves in nine blocks out of 
the Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
184 (Stonecreek Estates) Both 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One 
2. General Plan for Stonecreek Estates – 08-26-14 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The proposed Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One adjoins the Berdett Road right-of-way 
immediately south of Dry Creek.  The subdivision is located in Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 184, 
for which the Development and Utility Agreements were recently approved by City Council on August 26, 2014.  
The Planning Commission had recommended approval of the Development Agreement and Land Plan on 
August 20.  The Plat is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) with the exception of a portion of the City 
Limits abutting Dry Creek. 
 
The Plat consists of 70.8 acres and 184 single-family residential lots.  Additionally, the Plat contains 3.25 acres in 
landscape reserves and a 5.12-acre recreation center site that will receive credit toward meeting parkland 
dedication requirements.  All proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width with some lots being 
substantially larger. 
 
The proposed Preliminary Plat is in conformance with the approved Land Plan and with applicable City 
ordinances.  Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One. 
  
 
 





V i c i n i t y   M a p 

N

N T S

STONECREEK

G.P.
ESTATES

Dry Creek

D
ry C

reek

30' Pipeline Esm
t

SF
±32.1 acres

SF
±22.8 acres

SF
±21.2 acres

SF
±20.8 acres

NON-RES.
±14.7 acres

REC
CENTER
±5.1 acres

SF
±28.0 acres

SF
±20.7 acres

SF
±33.1 acres

SF
±57.1 acres

SF
±23.5 acres

WWTP
±4.1 acres

SF
±16.4 acres

NON-RES.
±2.3 acres

DRILL SITE
±2.5 acres

SF
±21.4 acres

SF
±17.4 acres

SF
±19.4 acres

SF
±15.7 acres

DRAINAGE /
DETENTION

±37.7 acres

DRAINAGE
±9.5 acres

DRAINAGE /
DETENTION

±30.3 acres

City Of Ros enbe rg C i ty Limits

City Of Rosenber g Ci ty Limits

Acreage

DRILL SITE
±3.0 acres

Rosenberg  ETJRosenber g  ETJ

60
’

Dry Creek

D
ry C

reek

30' Pipeline Esm
t

SF
±32.1 acres

SF
±22.8 acres

SF
±21.2 acres

SF
±20.8 acres

NON-RES.
±14.7 acres

REC
CENTER
±5.1 acres

SF
±28.0 acres

WILEY MARTIN SURVEY, A-56

WILEY MARTIN SURVEY, A-56

FB
C

M
U

D
 N

o.
15

2

HENRY WILCOX SURVEY, A-342

E.P.
 E

VERETT
 S

URVEY, 
A-38

7

E.P. EVERETT SURVEY, A-387

HENRY W
ILC

OX S
URVEY, 

A-34
2

FT
. B

END C
OUNTY

ROSENBERG E
TJ

FT. BEND COUNTY

ROSENBERG ETJ

FT
. B

EN
D

 C
O

U
N

TY

R
O

SE
N

BE
R

G
 E

TJ

FT
. B

EN
D

 C
O

U
N

TY

R
O

SE
N

BE
R

G
 E

TJ

FT. BEND COUNTY

ROSENBERG ETJ

SF
±20.7 acres

SF
±33.1 acres

SF
±57.1 acres

SF
±23.5 acres

WWTP
±4.1 acres

SF
±16.4 acresPARK

±1.1 acres

60
’

PARK
±1.0 acres

PARK
±1.0 acres

NON-RES.
±2.3 acres

Zone “A/E”/Floodw
ay

Areas of ZO
ne “AE”

DRILL SITE
±2.5 acres

SF
±21.4 acres

SF
±17.4 acres

SF
±19.4 acres

SF
±15.7 acres

DRAINAGE /
DETENTION

±37.7 acres

DRAINAGE
±9.5 acres

DRAINAGE /
DETENTION

±30.3 acres

City Of Ros enbe rg C i ty Limits

City Of Rosenber g Ci ty Limits

Rosenberg  ETJRosenber g  ETJ

Bridlewood
Estates

(Future Bonbrook
Plantation)

(Future Walnut Creek)

Acreage

Acreage

M
ye

rs
 E

sta
te

Ja
m

es
 W

ya
tt

Re
sid

ue
 C

all
ed

 3
76

.1
61

2 
Ac

.

Vo
l.1

93
4,

 P
g.

71
2,

 F.
B.

C.
D.

R.

NYDIA 
MYERS DURAN

Calle
d 2

4.9
524

 Ac.

Vo
l.19

34,
 Pg.7

12,
 F.B

.C.D.R.

E
X

IS
TN

G
 B

E
R

D
E

TT
E

 R
O

A
D

  
(6

0’
 R

.O
.W

.)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 G
R

A
N

D
 P

A
R

K
W

AY

A. MYERS ROAD (ULTIMATE-120’ R.O.W.)

RICE FIELD ROAD (60’ R.O.W.)

DRILL SITE
±3.0 acres

Zone “A/E”/Floodway
Areas of ZOne “AE”

F. IRBY COBB B TRUST
Residue Called 400.814 Ac.

F.B.C.C.F. No.2006019259

LAND & CONSTRUCTION, LTD.
LENNAR HOMES OF TEXAS

F.B.C.C.F. No.2007013845, 2008017096

Remainder of 792.85 Ac.
BIG CREEK, LTD.

F.B.C.C.F. No.2001123289

Section Three
Slide No’s 1660 A&B
1661 A&B, 1662 A,

F.B.C.P.R.

F. IRBY COBB B TRUST
Residue Called 400.814 Ac.

F.B.C.C.F. No.2006019259

T. W. Davis
Called 607.75 Ac.

Vol.64, Pg.109
D.R.F.B.C.T.

COLLECTOR  R
OAD  (8

0’ R.O.W.)

MAXIMUM NO. OF LOTS : 1,400

S F

N . R .

N . R .

R E C

PA R K

O S

NON-RESIDENTIAL

±2.3 Ac

±14.7 Ac

RECREATION CENTER ±5.1 Ac

SINGLE FAMILY
(MIN.60’ WIDTH, MIN. AVG.SIZE 7,000 S.F.)

(MIN. SIZE 6,500 S.F.)

±349.6 Ac

TOT LOTS/PARK ±3.1 Ac

DRILL SITE/EASEMENT ±5.5 Ac

WWTP SITE ±4.1 Ac

DRAINAGE/DETENTION ±77.5 Ac

OPEN SPACE ±10.2 Ac

SUBTOTAL   ±17.0 Ac

TOTAL PARKLAND REQUIRED = (1,400 LOTS) (3 PERSONS/LOT)(6.25AC.)

TOTAL PARKLAND REQUIRED = 26.3 AC.
TOTAL PARKLAND TO BE PROVIDED = 26.3 AC. (MIN.)
TOTAL PARKLAND REMAINING =    0 AC.

1,000 PERSONS

SUBTOTAL   ±105.5 Ac

SUBTOTAL   ±349.6 Ac

LAND USE SUMMARY

MIN. 10% FEE  =  (1,400 LOTS) ($1,700/LOT)

10

=   $238,000

1,400 LOTS

=  $170/LOT

a   general   plan  of

S TO N E C R E E K
E S TAT E S

B E I N G  ± 5 0 2 . 6  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

JULY 25, 2014
KGA #8612

SCALE

0 600300150

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

Land Planning Consultants

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  FURTHER, SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  THIS DRAWING MAY OR MAY NOT 
INCORPORATE INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & 
ASSOCIATES BY OTHER CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD 
PLAINS AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  
NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND 
CHARACTER OF THE FACILITATES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO 
WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

©2014 BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

B G E  |  K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &  A S S O C I A T E S

©2014 BGE | KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, A
ll R

ights R
eserved

B
G

E
 |

 K
E

R
R

Y
 R

. 
G

IL

BERT &
 ASSOCIATES

BGE | KERRY R. G
IL

BERT 
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S

W I L E Y  M A RT I N  S U RV E Y,  A - 5 6
E . P.  E V E R E T T  S U RV E Y,  A - 3 8 7
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS

OUT of THE

OWNER:

HOUSTON , TX. 77081
6335 GULFTON, SUITE-200

D RY  C R E E K  ( H O U S TO N )  A S L I ,  L L C

HOUSTON, TX. 77042

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:

9801 WESTHEIMER, SUITE-250

ATTN: CLAYTON BLACK (713) 777-5337

J O N E S  &  C A RT E R ,  I N C .

ATTN: VAHID TABRIZI (713) 627-1015



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Extension of Approval – Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street 
Dedication No. 2 

 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 
days for the Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. Two, a subdivision of 3.451 
acres containing 1,930 L.F. of R.O.W. out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, and the Wiley Martin 
League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication 
No. Two by 180 days from the date of expiration. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
152 (Walnut Creek) ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Freeman Correspondence – 07-24-14 
2. Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Blvd. Street Dedication No. Two – 02-26-14 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-26-14 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. Two on 
February 26, 2014.  Pursuant to the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the applicant has requested an extension of that 
approval by 180 days from the date of its expiration.   
 
The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. 2 is a right-of-way dedication 
plat consisting of 3.4 acres.  It is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD 
No. 152.  It adjoins future Walnut Creek Sections Seven and Eleven and will connect Irby Cobb Boulevard to its 
intersection with Benton Road. 
 
The Preliminary Plat is consistent with the street layout per the approved Land Plan, will provide access further 
east into the development, and will facilitate an eventual second point of access into the development from 
Benton Road.  The Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land Plan, 
or with the Development Agreement for MUD No. 152. 
 
Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. 
Two by 180 days from the date of expiration, August 25, 2014.  If approved, this extension of the Preliminary Plat 
approval would then expire on Friday, February 20, 2015. 
  
 







cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Extension of Approval – Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 
days for the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven, a subdivision of 9.621 acres containing 3 
blocks, 31 lots, and 1 restricted reserve out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, 
Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven by 180 
days from the date of expiration. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
152 ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Freeman Correspondence – 07-24-14 
2. Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven – 02-26-14 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-26-14 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven on February 26, 2014.  
Pursuant to the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the applicant has requested an extension of that approval by 180 days 
from the date of its expiration. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven consists of thirty-one (31) residential lots located off of Irby 
Cobb Boulevard in the north central part of the Walnut Creek Development.  The Plat is located in the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 152.  It adjoins Walnut Creek Section Four to 
the immediate west. 
 
The subdivision generally consists of sixty-foot (60’) lots in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Walnut 
Creek.  Four (4) of the lots are identified as being less than 60’ lots due to being less than fifty feet (50’) as 
measured at the right-of-way.  All lots are a minimum of 60’ as measured at the front building line.  Additionally, 
the subdivision contains a 1.36-acre landscape reserve abutting the future Irby Cobb right-of-way.  The proposed 
Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land Plan, or with the 
Development Agreement for MUD No. 152. 
 
Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven by 180 days 
from the date of expiration, August 25, 2014.  If approved, this extension of the Preliminary Plat approval would 
then expire on Friday, February 20, 2015. 
  







cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Extension of Approval – Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a request by Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates to extend approval by 180 
days for the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven, a subdivision of 8.764 acres containing 27 
lots, 2 blocks and 1 restricted reserve out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, and the Wiley Martin 
League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven by 180 
days from the date of expiration. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
152 (Walnut Creek) ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Freeman Correspondence – 07-24-14 
2. Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven – 02-26-14 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-26-14 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven on February 26, 2014.  
Pursuant to the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the applicant has requested an extension of that approval by 180 days 
from the date of its expiration. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven consists of twenty-seven (27) residential lots located off of 
Irby Cobb Boulevard in the north central part of the Walnut Creek Development.  The Plat is located in the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 152.  It adjoins Walnut Creek Section Seven 
to the immediate west. 
 
The subdivision generally consists of sixty-foot (60’) lots in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Walnut 
Creek.  Four (4) of the lots are identified as being less than 60’ lots due to being less than fifty feet (50’) as 
measured at the right-of-way.  All lots are a minimum of 60’ as measured at the front building line.  Additionally, 
the subdivision contains a 1.88-acre landscape reserve abutting the future Irby Cobb right-of-way.  The 
Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land Plan, or with the 
Development Agreement for MUD No. 152. 
 
Staff recommends extending the approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven by 180 days 
from the date of expiration, August 25, 2014.  If approved, this extension of the Preliminary Plat approval would 
then expire on Friday, February 20, 2015. 
  







cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 Public Hearing on Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of 
Commercial Reserve “A-2” 

 
MOTION 
 

Hold public hearing for a Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A-2”, a 
subdivision of 4.3943 acres or 191,416 square feet of land being a replat of Commercial Reserve “A-2” of 
Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A”, recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 
20130048, in the James Lowery Survey, Abstract No. 275, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 1 
block, 2 reserves. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the public hearing be held. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A-2” 
2. Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A” – 12-19-12 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-19-12 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
This Agenda item consists of the required public hearing on the proposed Goldshire Center Replat of 
Commercial Reserve “A-2.”  The Plat consists of 4.3943 acres and two (2) commercial reserves.  It is a replat of 
the previous Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A,” which was recorded in March 2013 after 
coming before the Planning Commission in December 2012 and City Council in February 2013. 
 
The Plat simply proposes to further subdivide existing Reserve “A-2” into two (2) new reserves to accommodate 
a new site development adjacent to the recently constructed Stripes at Reading Road and FM 1640.  There are 
no issues with the proposed subdivision that conflict with City ordinances.  However, a public hearing is required 
for replats per State law and City ordinance.  Therefore staff recommends that the Planning Commission hold 
the required public hearing on the Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A-
2” before taking action on the Plat in the subsequent Agenda item. 
  
 
 









cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve 
“A-2” 

 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve 
“A-2”, a subdivision of 4.3943 acres or 191,416 square feet of land being a replat of Commercial Reserve 
“A-2” of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A”, recorded under Fort Bend County Clerk’s 
File No. 20130048, in the James Lowery Survey, Abstract No. 275, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; 1 block, 2 reserves. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial 
Reserve “A-2”. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A-2” – Please see refer 
to previous Agenda item 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
As discussed in the previous Agenda item, the Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial 
Reserve “A-2” consists of 4.3943 acres and two (2) commercial reserves.  It is a replat of the previous Goldshire 
Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A.”  The Plat is located east of the intersection of Reading Road and FM 
1640. 
 
The Plat is adjacent to the recently constructed Stripes and simply proposes to further subdivide existing 
Reserve “A-2” into two (2) new reserves to accommodate new site development.  The development will abut the 
Stripes site.  One of the proposed reserves (Reserve “A-2”) is 2.7186 acres while the second proposed reserve 
(Reserve “A-3”) is 1.6757 acres.  A portion of Reserve “A-2”falls within the West Fort Bend Management District, 
as indicated in the Plat.  The reserves will have cross access and designated access to FM 1640 per previous 
easements dedicated in 2007 and in 2013 as noted on the Plat. 
 
There are no issues with the proposed subdivision that conflict with City ordinances.  Therefore staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of 
Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve “A-2”. 
  
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight, being a subdivision of 8.574 
acres out of the W.M. Lusk Survey, A-276 and the Jane Long League, A-55, in the City of Rosenberg, in 
Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144); 36 lots, 2 blocks, 1 reserve 
(0.5214 acre). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Summer Lakes Section Eight. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
144 (Summer Lakes/Waterford 

Park) City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 
1. Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight 
2. Preliminary Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight 
3. Revised Land and Parcel Plan for MUD No. 144 PUD – 11-01-11 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-18-14 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight is located off of Lake Commons and Blue Lake Drives in the 
south central portion of the Summer Lakes development.  The Plat consists of 8.574 acres, 36 residential lots, 
and one (1) reserve containing 0.5 acres. 
 
All proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width as measured at the front building line.  The Plat 
complies with the Development Agreement and approved Land Plan for Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  The 
Land Plan, which is attached for reference, identifies the area of the Plat as single-family residential 
development.  The Development Agreement calls for a minimum lot width of fifty feet (50’) and minimum size of 
6,000 square feet.  All proposed lots meet these requirements. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight was approved by the Planning Commission on June 18, 
2014.  The Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight is not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the 
approved Preliminary Plat, or with the Development Agreement for Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  Staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Summer 
Lakes Section Eight. 
  
 
 







�����������	��
	������������
���	����������������������������������������
� ������



CITY OF ROSENBERG
CALLED 5.332 ACRES

F.B.C.C.F. NO. 1999030872
O.P.R.O.R.P.

SH
A

N
E 

BL
U

M
E

CA
LL

ED
 2

.2
98

 A
CR

ES

VO
LU

M
E 

13
55

, P
A

G
E 

16
3

D
.R

.F
.B

.C
.

JOSE VILLARREAL AND WIFE, ALICIA VILLARREAL

CALLED 18.708 ACRES

F.B.C.C.F. NO. 9763023
O.P.R.O.R.P. LOT 18

LOT 21

LOT 15

LOT 12

LOT 9

LOT 6

LOT 3

UNRESTRICTED RESERVE "C"

UNRESTRICTED RESERVE "B"

UNRESTRICTED RESERVE "A"

ROSENBERG RESEARCH DRIVE

(60' R.O.W.)

THE READING CENTER
SLIDE NO. 1680A & 1680B

P.R.F.B.C.

VO
LU

M
E 

52
2,

 P
A

G
E 

22
D

.R
.F

.B
.C

.
READING ROAD

(100' R.O.W.)

VOLUME 125, PAGE 179
D.R.F.B.C.

RESIDUE OF
CALLED 136.3914 ACRES
F.B.C.C.F. NO. 9885910

O.P.R.O.R.P.

36
' A

sp
ha

lt 
Pa

vi
ng

RICHMOND IRRIGATION CO. 100' EASEMENT

CA
RD

IN
A

L 
RO

A
D

 (6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

RA
VE

N
 R

O
A

D
 (6

0'
 R

.O
.W

.)

LA
RK

 R
O

A
D

 (6
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

10
0.

00
'

F.
M

. 2
97

7
 (C

A
LL

ED
 1

00
' R

.O
.W

)

AGNES MEADOW LANE  (60' R.O.W.)

SP
A

CE
K 

RO
A

D

ONLY

ONLY

ONLY

ONLY

ONLY

ONLY

s

s

s

s

u

s

s

s

s

ss

u

ss

t

s

l l

V

V
l

U

U

tr

s

t

V

l

l

V

t

t

V
l

l

t

l

V

r

t

t

V

l

l t

s

t

V

l

t

s

t

t

V

l

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

t

U
U

t

t

t

U
U

s

t

t

s

l
V

l

ll

t

s

s

L

s

s

I

s

V
l

I

I

V
l

l

l

l l

j

j

j

j

j

j

j

j

j

j

L

j

I

j

s

s

l
V

I

j

l
l V

U

U
U

U
U

U

l

s

l
V

s

I

l V

I

I

t

t

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

a

t

t

I

I

I

tr

t

t

t

r

t

t

Ut

I

t

r

r

t

ss

s

U

t

t

r

r

t

tUt

t

r

I

s

l

t

t

t

t

l
V

l
V

s

s

I

l l

G G G
G

G

GGG
G

G

S t u d i o L a n d
 Landscape Architecture

S L A
•••

•
L a n d  P l a n n i ngLand Use & Parcel Plan: Exhibit B

MP G-6the original scale is 1”= 400’ north arrow

0 200 400    800  ft

Fort Bend County Municipal UUtility District No. 144 PUD
SYI902
April 8, 2010
Revised June 18, 2010
Revised July 22, 2010
Revised October 26, 2011

Legend
Parcel Areas

A 38.65� �

� �� �

��

�

�

� ��

� �� �

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

B 49.74
C 12.90
D 28.63
E 31.32
F 128.40
G
* OPF- Other public city, county, state & federal facilities
  CH-Church

SCH-School

Commercial
Commercial/Residential
Multi-family/Commercial
Multi-family/Residential
Residential
Residential
Park Space/Detention 75.96

SF  DUP  PH   TH   MF

Land Uses Permitted
 COM RET CH SCH OPF*

Land Use Key

365.60 Acres

Parcel Key

Parcel Number

Land Use Key

WFBMD Boundary

WFBMD Boundary

1 A

2 A

21G

22G

23G
5 B

4 B

6 B 24G

7 B

16E

33G

15E
9 B

8 C

14D

13D

12C

3 A

28G

29G

25G

30G

26G

31G

27G

27G

32G

19F
20F

18F

17F

11B

10B

10.27 Ac

25.87 Ac

0.63 Ac

0.54 Ac

0.46 Ac
9.24 Ac

2.16 Ac

2.07 Ac 12.79 Ac

2.76 Ac

12.61 Ac

2.47 Ac

18.71 Ac

14.09Ac

6.69 Ac

15.23 Ac

13.40 Ac

6.19 Ac

2.51 Ac

10.83 Ac

1.64 Ac

11.64 Ac

10.14 Ac

3.73 Ac

13.97 Ac

4.19 Ac

2.93 Ac

10.89 Ac

37.14 Ac

26.61 Ac

53.76Ac

10.60 Ac

8.81 Ac

Tract 14

Tract 15

Tract 16

Tract 17

Tract 18

MUD 144 Limited Controlled Tracts*

Tract #

Notes:

Tract Area Acres

14 4.56
15 6.2395
16 5.8758
17 3.78
18** 4.1667

24.622 Acres

 *Note 1: Tracts 14, 15, 16, 17 & 18 depicted on Exhibit "A" 
on the MUD 144 PUD (hereinafter referred to as "Limited 
Control Tracts") are included within the PUD boundary for 
the sole purpose of applying Exhibit "H", Exhibit "I" and 
Table "5" PUD standards to the Limited Control Tracts.
 
** Note 2: Tract 18 (depicted on Exhibit "A" of the MUD 144 
PUD) is encumbered by easements (including but not limited
 to landscaping, signage, access and other easements) for 
the benefit of the "Adjacent Parcel" referred to as the "Summer 
Creek Subdivision Tract" (identified as Tract 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 
as depicted on Exhibit "A" to the MUD 144 PUD hereof) filed 
under Fort Bend County Clerk's File No's 2006155450 and 
2010079053 ("Easements"). A Benefitted Party of the Summer 
Creek Subdivision Tract shall be entitled to meet the 
requirements Exhibit "H", Exhibit "I" and Table "5" of the 
MUD 144 PUD in connection with and subject to said 
Easement rights on Tract 18.

*** Note 3: The ±.2 acre difference between the PUD Tract total
acreage and the Parcel sums listed on Exhibit B is attributable to
a portion of Lake Commons Drive in Summer Lakes that is included 
in the Tract summary but excluded from the Land Use inventory.  



cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two, being a subdivision of 16.498 
acres out of the Robert E. Handy Survey, A-187, in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas (Fort 
Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144): 64 lots, 3 blocks, 3 reserves (0.6726 acre). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Summer Park Section Two. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
144 (Summer Lakes/Waterford 

Park) City 4 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two 
2. Preliminary Plat of Summer Park Section Two – 06-18-14 
3. Revised Land and Parcel Plan for MUD No. 144 PUD – 11-01-11 – Please refer to previous 

Agenda item 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-18-14 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two is located off of Park Place Boulevard in the southwest portion of 
the Summer Park development.  The Plat consists of 16.498 acres, 64 residential lots, and three (3) reserves 
containing 0.67 acres. 
 
All proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60’) in width as measured at the front building line.  The Plat 
complies with the Development Agreement and approved Land Plan for Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  The 
Land Plan, which is attached for reference, identifies the area of the plat as single-family residential development.  
The Development Agreement calls for a minimum lot width of fifty feet (50’) and minimum size of 6,000 square 
feet.  All proposed lots meet these requirements. 
 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of this subdivision on June 18, 2014.  The Final Plat is 
not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Preliminary Plat, or with the Development 
Agreement for Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Summer Park 
Section Two. 
  
 
 



� �

�



� �

�



� �

�



� �

�



� �

�



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
September 17, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and requests for future agenda items. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

N/A 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A N/A N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. None 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

     City Engineer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on as well as other 
updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning Commission the 
opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
Staff expects to follow up on the previous discussion of masonry standards in the near future.  We expect that, 
as well as the “Parking” Ordinance amendments that were recently discussed, to be on a City Council Workshop 
Agenda in the fall. 
 
Staff will provide an update on the Comprehensive Planning process, and the Commission’s role in it, at the 
meeting. 
  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 13 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Planning Commission Meeting Agenda - 09-17-14
	1 - Minutes
	Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - 08-20-14

	2 - Development Agreement Amendment No. 4 - Revised Development Plan for Brazos Town Center
	Developer's Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit "B", Brazos Town Center 
	Amendment No. 4 to Development Agreement - Draft
	Vicinity Map

	3 - Development Agreement Amendment No. 5 - Revised Development Plan for Brazos Town Center
	Developer's Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit "B", Brazos Town Center
	Amendment No. 5 to Development Agreement - Draft
	Vicinity Map

	4 - Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One
	Preliminary Plat of Stonecreek Estates Section One
	General Plan for Stonecreek Estates - 08-26-14

	5 - Extension of Approval - Preliminary Plat of Irby Cobb Boulevard Street Dedication No. 2
	Freeman Correspondence - 07-24-14
	Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Irby Cobb Dr. Street Dedication No. Two - 02-26-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-26-14

	6 - Extension of Approval - Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven
	Freeman Correspondence - 07-24-14
	Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven - 02-26-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-26-14

	7 - Extension of Approval - Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven
	Freeman Correspondence - 07-24-14
	Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven - 02-26-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-26-14

	8 - Public Hearing on Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve A-2
	Short Form Final Plat of Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A-2"
	Goldshire Center Replat of Commercial Reserve "A" - 12-19-12
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-19-12

	9 - Short Form Final Plat Goldshire Center Replat Commercial Reserve A-2
	10 - Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight
	Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight
	Preliminary Plat of Summer Lakes Section Eight - 06-18-14
	Revised Land and Parcel Plan for MUD No. 144 PUD - 11-01-11
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-18-14

	11 - Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two
	Final Plat of Summer Park Section Two
	Preliminary Plat of Summer Park Section Two - 06-18-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-18-14

	12 - Staff Report on Current Activity and Requests for Future Agenda Items
	13 - Announcements
	14 - Adjournment

